
































































From: Seth Miller Gabriel
To: Lorfils, John; Cameau, Rasha
Cc: Umer Yaqub; Edgar Lucatero Toscano
Subject: City of North Miami Project Funding Options
Date: Thursday, July 6, 2023 2:17:17 PM
Attachments: City of North Miami Redevelopment P3 Porjects Funding Options.pdf
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-City Of North Miami IT Department.

 

 

Good Afternoon City Manager and Director,
 
Please see attached BDO’s analysis of the funding options, in regards to the City’s and CRA’s
revenue streams, in support of the redevelopment program.
 
Please let us know if you have any questions or if we can set-up a call to discuss.
 
Thank you so much,
Seth
 
Seth Miller Gabriel (he, him, his)
Director - Valuation & Capital Market Analysis
Co-Lead for Infrastructure & P3s
202-644-5425 (Direct)    402-5425 (Internal)
240-899-8499 (Mobile)   202-644-5401 (Fax)
smillergabriel@bdo.com
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Introduction 


Throughout the global pandemic, the 
City of North Miami (the “City”) managed 
to achieve an uptick in its overall net 
position, primarily attributable to 
optimized administrative expenditures 
and a decrease in associated costs. 
Moreover, the City has experienced a 
surge in property growth rates in fiscal 
year (“FY”) 2022 (+6.2%), a decline in 
unemployment rates (3.0% in 2021 vs. 
2.0% in 2022) and has become a hub for 
over 800 businesses. This trend is 
anticipated to continue with the arrival 
of prominent enterprises such as Audi, 
Got Room, Family Dollar, Life Storage, 
Kipp, and others, further strengthening 
the City’s economic landscape. 


 
Strategic Initiatives, Plans & Projected 
Outcomes 


The City has embarked on numerous 
endeavours to transform its urban 
landscape. These initiatives encompass a 
variety of new mixed-use real estate 
projects and the augmentation of 
existing residential complexes. 
Consequently, the City anticipates 
overall city-wide property assessments 
to grow year-over-year, coupled with an 
estimated increase in tax collections 
from new and expanded developments 
during the FY 2025 to 2027 period. This 


estimate includes the tax collect by the 
City on behalf of the North Miami 
Community Redevelopment Agency 
(“CRA”). These efforts lay the 
foundation for the City’s broader 
redevelopment plans, which include the 
Downtown Redevelopment P3 Project. 


The City started the process of delivering 
a renewed and revitalized downtown 
with the goal of providing the community 
with new facilities and spaces to live, 
work, and play. The full project scope 
envisions a reinvented City Hall Block 
including new City Hall, an updated 
Police facility, and a new City-owned 
parking facility (the “Project). A 
separate Real Estate project envisages a 
possible ground lease with a private 
sector firm, which is planned to be 
procured, at a similar time. 


The Real Estate project will very much 
be the community-facing part of the 
larger North Miami project. The City will 
be seeking ideas and plans for a private 
sector firm to identify the best partner 
for this redevelopment. This project will 
not only provide new opportunities for 
the residents of the City but will also 
unlock the value of the property. That 
value, only available to the City through 
this project, will be realized in the City 
budget from both the ground lease 
payments to be paid by the private 
development firm and through new tax 
revenues generated from the new 
private activity on the location of the 
current City Hall and several City owner 
parking lots. 
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The Downtown Redevelopment Project is 
an integral component of the larger 
redevelopment initiative, and the City 
has elected to explore the procurement 
of this project. This means a possible 
innovative project delivery model or 
more traditional development means.  


As part of this evaluation process, the 
City, and its advisory team has 
developed an analysis of City real 
property tax revenues, the primary 
source of City funding, under a series of 
different scenarios regarding the North 
Miami Community Redevelopment 
Agency. That analysis is covered in the 
following sections. 
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Scenario Analysis of CRA Agreements 
and their Impact on the City’s General 
Fund  


The purpose of this analysis is to explore 
the financial implications of different 
agreements between the City and the 
CRA. The focus is on how changes to 
these agreements may impact the City’s 
General Fund. The main variables 
changing affect how ad valorem tax 
revenues are allocated between the CRA 
and the City which are explained in 
detail in this section. We performed an 
analysis of five different scenarios. Each 
scenario reflects a potential change to 
the current agreement. The scenarios 
vary in terms of the percentage of the 
total increment the CRA receives, and 
the percentage of the east side 
increment the CRA refunds back to the 
City. We also explore the impact of 
resetting the base property values for 
the calculation of the increment. The 
purpose of this analysis is not to suggest 
specific changes but rather to provide a 
clear picture of how such changes could 
impact the City’s finances. The 
information provided can guide strategic 
decision-making and discussions about 
potential adjustments to the CRA 
agreements. 


This section includes detailed 
descriptions of each scenario, charts 
visualizing the impacts of each scenario, 
and an appendix with additional data. 
The data presented here will be the Tax 
Increment Financing (“TIF”) allocation to 
the CRA and the net cash flow to the 
City. All other revenues and expenses are 
held constant across all scenarios. 


 


Base Case Scenario Current Agreement  


 


 


Under the current agreement, the CRA 
receives 95% of the increment resulting 
from increases in property values, new 
construction, and resets in both the west 
and east side CRA designated regions. 
From the east side increment, the CRA 
refunds back to the City 45% of the value. 


Scenario 1: CRA allocation reduced 
from 95% to 75% (City Collects 25%) 


 


 


In this scenario, the CRA would receive a 
reduced percentage (75%) of the total 
increment. The percentage of the east 
side increment in this scenario remains 
the same at 45%. 
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Current Agreement


CRA Revenues City Net Cash Flow


FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028


CRA Revenues 10,715 11,088 12,294 14,433 15,188


City Net Cash Flow (10) (2,162) (2,217) (3,657) (3,532)
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Scenario 1: CRA allocation reduced from 95% to 75% 


(City Collects 25%)


CRA Revenues City Net Cash Flow


FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028


CRA Revenues 8,192 8,474 9,413 11,088 11,668


City Net Cash Flow 2,513 452 664 (311) (12)


CITY OF NORTH MIAMI / NORTH MIAMI CRA REVENUE 
SCENARIOS 
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Scenario 2: CRA allocation reduced 
from 95% to 60% (City Collects 40%) 


 


 


In this scenario, the CRA would receive a 
reduced percentage (60%) of the total 
increment. The percentage of the east 
side increment in this scenario remains 
the same at 45%. 


Scenario 3: No Refund to City and CRA 
collects 60% 


 


 


In this scenario, the CRA would continue 
to receive 60% of the total increment 
from both regions, like in Scenario 2. The 
key difference here is that the CRA would 
no longer refund any portion of the east 
side increment back to the City. 


Scenario 4: Declining TIF Contribution 
to CRA 


 


 


In this scenario, the percentage of the 
total City increment the CRA receives is 
forecasted to decline starting from FY 
2024. Beginning with 68% of the 
increment in FY 2024, the CRA's share 
gradually reduces each year to reach 
about 50% by FY 2028. This approach is 
designed to keep the TIF contribution to 
the CRA relatively stable, based on the 
FY 2023 TIF contribution amount. This 
means, while the CRA's share of the total 
increment decreases over time whereas 
the actual dollar amount they receive 
remains stable. 
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Scenario 2: CRA allocation reduced from 95% to 60% 


(City Collects 40%)


CRA Revenues City Net Cash Flow


FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028


CRA Revenues 6,300 6,514 7,252 8,578 9,028


City Net Cash Flow 4,405 2,412 2,825 2,198 2,627
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Scenario 3: No refund to City and CRA collects 60%


CRA Revenues City Net Cash Flow


FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028


CRA Revenues 7,569 7,842 8,643 10,037 10,559


City Net Cash Flow 3,137 1,085 1,434 739 1,096
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Scenario 4: Declining TIF Contribution to CRA


CRA Revenues City Net Cash Flow


FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028


CRA Revenues 8,611 8,611 8,611 8,611 8,611


City Net Cash Flow 2,094 315 1,466 2,165 3,044
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Scenario 5: Resetting the Base Year (for 
CRA property value) 


 


 


In this scenario, the base property values 
for both the east and west side CRA 
designated areas are reset to match the 
FY 2023 property values. By updating the 
base property values to this level, it 
changes the calculation for the 
increment going forward, refreshing the 
increment calculation. The CRA still 
receives a 95% share of the total 
increment and does not pay out a refund. 
This scenario may be considered to give 
the CRA a "fresh start" with the updated 
base property values while maintaining a 
high allocation of future increments.  


City / CRA Net Cash Flow Summary 


The following two charts consolidate 
each scenario’s TIF (North Miami CRA) 
contribution amount and the net cash 
flow over the forecasted period. 
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Scenario 5: Resetting the Base Year (for CRA property 


value)


CRA Revenues City Net Cash Flow


FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028


CRA Revenues 2,072 2,504 3,773 5,980 6,807


City Net Cash Flow 8,633 6,423 6,305 4,796 4,849
 -  2,000  4,000  6,000  8,000  10,000  12,000  14,000  16,000


FY 2024


FY 2025


FY 2026


FY 2027


FY 2028


CRA Revenues Summary


S5 S4 S3 S2 S1 Current Agreement


FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028


Current Agreement 10,715 11,088 12,294 14,433 15,188


S1: CRA collects 75% 8,192 8,474 9,413 11,088 11,668


S2: CRA collects 60% 6,300 6,514 7,252 8,578 9,028


S3: No Refund/CRA 60% 7,569 7,842 8,643 10,037 10,559


S4: Fixed CRA Revenue 8,611 8,611 8,611 8,611 8,611


S5: Reset Base Year 2,072 2,504 3,773 5,980 6,807


(3,000)(2,000)(1,000)  -  1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000 9,000 10,000


FY 2024


FY 2025


FY 2026


FY 2027


FY 2028


City Net Cash Flow Summary


S5 S4 S3 S2 S1 Current Agreement


FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028


Current Agreement (10) (2,162) (2,217) (3,657) (3,532)


S1: CRA collects 75% 2,513 452 664 (311) (12)


S2: CRA collects 60% 4,405 2,412 2,825 2,198 2,627


S3: No Refund/CRA 60% 3,137 1,085 1,434 739 1,096


S4: Fixed CRA Revenue 2,094 315 1,466 2,165 3,044


S5: Reset Base Year 8,633 6,423 6,305 4,796 4,849
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Possible Impacts of a Real Estate 
Project for the P3 Project 


The possible real estate project 


associated with the North Miami 


Downtown redevelopemnt is anticipated 


to provide beneficial financial outcomes 


of the City. Any real estate initiatives are 


projected to yield substantial revenue 


streams due to private sector 


involvement on the municipal property. 


There are a number of possibilties for 


real estate development the City could 


undertake, all requiring some sort of 


partnership with a private partner. 


Under one possibility, the leasing of 


public land under the current City Hall 


and downtown parking lots, the City is 


projected to generate lease revenues 


estimated at $3.5 million per annum. 


Other real estate development scenario 


will result in different economic impacts 


for the City. Most of the revenue for the 


City will come from the ground lease 


revenue. Additional revenue for tax 


collection, new and as a result of the real 


estate development, will also be 


created. 


Furthermore, a portion of the overall 


Annual Availability Payment for the 


proposed P3 project could be covered by 


these new real estate revenues. It is 


suggested that any additional tax income 


generated through this real estate 


development be allocated toward 


funding the City’s P3 project, effectively 


mitigating associated expenses, meaning 


that new revenues generated from the 


downtown redevelopment program 


should be dedicated to funding the 


program. 


Noteworthy is that presently the City has 


no parking charges. With the Parking 


Garage becoming the only viable parking 


option other than street parking, it can 


generate significant revenues to support 


the Project if parking fees are imposed. 


Conclusion 


The City of North Miami is working hard 
to reinvent the downtown through 
community, culture, and commerce for 
all. There are many ways that the City 
could deliver the community, commerce, 
and cultural elements it is seeking but, 
the redevelopment of the downtown 
might provide the best value for money. 
A new City Hall and Police Headquarters, 
along with an improved parking 
experience, will bring a sense of pride 
for all residents. These developments 
will also deliver better facilities all City 
employees, residents, and visitors at a 
predictable cost for decades to come.  


The new private sector activity on the 
real estate will also provide new benefits 
to the community. These new businesses 
will provide new jobs during design and 
construction. Jobs during operation and 
more jobs to provide services to these 
new businesses. Additional housing is 
also a possibility that could provide new 
opportunities for all in the community. 


As presented in this analysis, the City has 
a few viable options to fund and finance 
these community improvements. All 
options should be explored and 
examined. Additional information can be 
provide as needed. 


POSSIBLE IMPACTS OF REAL ESTATE PROJECT 







General Fund Scenario Analysis


Actuals Adopted Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
9/30/2022 9/30/2023 9/30/2024 9/30/2025 9/30/2026 9/30/2027 9/30/2028


FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028


Implied Assessed Taxable Value 3,946,181 4,375,172 4,940,000 5,434,000 5,868,720 6,338,218 6,845,275
Growth Rate 6.25% 10.87% 12.91% 10.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%


Millage Rate 0.75% 0.74% 0.74% 0.74% 0.74% 0.74% 0.74%
Operating Tax Levy 29,596 32,376 36,556 40,212 43,429 46,903 50,655
Discount on Taxes 5% (1,038) (1,619) (1,828) (2,011) (2,171) (2,345) (2,533)


Assessed Property Value Break Down:


East Side Property Value (CRA) NA 377,201 388,517 407,943 428,340 449,757 472,245
West Side Property Value (CRA) NA 1,912,171 1,969,536 2,068,013 2,171,413 2,379,084 2,713,838
Rest of City (Non-CRA) NA 2,085,800 2,581,947 2,958,044 3,268,966 3,509,376 3,659,192


Total Assessed Property Value NA 4,375,172 4,940,000 5,434,000 5,868,720 6,338,218 6,845,275


TIF Scenarios and Build-Up:


East Side Increment City NA NA 381,048 398,657 417,691 438,087 459,808
West Side Increment City NA NA 1,323,696 1,367,467 1,528,938 1,822,537 1,918,412


Total City Increment NA NA 1,704,743 1,766,124 1,946,629 2,260,623 2,378,220


Current Agreement


Allocation to CRA from City 95% NA 9,736 11,984 12,416 13,685 15,892 16,719
Intergovernmental Transfer to City 45% NA (1,125) (1,269) (1,328) (1,391) (1,459) (1,531)


City TIF Contribution NA 8,611 10,715 11,088 12,294 14,433 15,188


City Budget Effect:


Ad Valorem Revenue NA 22,146 24,013 27,113 28,963 30,124 32,935
Total Other Revenue (excl Ad Valorem) NA 43,688 56,705 48,554 49,898 51,283 52,710
Total Expenses NA (65,835) (80,728) (77,829) (81,078) (85,064) (89,177)


Net Cash Flow - (0) (10) (2,162) (2,217) (3,657) (3,532)


Scenario 1: CRA allocation reduced from 95% to 75% (City Collects 25%)


Allocation to CRA from City 75% NA 9,736 9,461 9,802 10,804 12,546 13,199
Intergovernmental Transfer to City 45% NA (1,125) (1,269) (1,328) (1,391) (1,459) (1,531)


City TIF Contribution NA 8,611 8,192 8,474 9,413 11,088 11,668


City Budget Effect:


Ad Valorem Revenue NA 22,146 26,536 29,727 31,844 33,470 36,454
Total Other Revenue (excl Ad Valorem) NA 43,688 56,705 48,554 49,898 51,283 52,710
Total Expenses NA (65,835) (80,728) (77,829) (81,078) (85,064) (89,177)


Net Cash Flow NA (0) 2,513 452 664 (311) (12)







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


Scenario 2: CRA allocation reduced from 95% to 60% (City Collects 40%)


Allocation to CRA from City 60% NA 9,736 7,569 7,842 8,643 10,037 10,559
Intergovernmental Transfer to City 45% NA (1,125) (1,269) (1,328) (1,391) (1,459) (1,531)


City TIF Contribution NA 8,611 6,300 6,514 7,252 8,578 9,028


City Budget Effect:


Ad Valorem Revenue NA 22,146 28,428 31,687 34,005 35,979 39,094
Total Other Revenue (excl Ad Valorem) NA 43,688 56,705 48,554 49,898 51,283 52,710
Total Expenses NA (65,835) (80,728) (77,829) (81,078) (85,064) (89,177)


Net Cash Flow NA (0) 4,405 2,412 2,825 2,198 2,627


Scenario 3: No refund to City and CRA collects 60%


Allocation to CRA from City 60% NA 9,736 7,569 7,842 8,643 10,037 10,559
Intergovernmental Transfer to City - NA (1,125) - - - - -


City TIF Contribution NA 8,611 7,569 7,842 8,643 10,037 10,559


City Budget Effect:


Ad Valorem Revenue NA 22,146 27,159 30,359 32,614 34,521 37,563
Total Other Revenue (excl Ad Valorem) NA 43,688 56,705 48,554 49,898 51,283 52,710
Total Expenses NA (65,835) (80,728) (77,829) (81,078) (85,064) (89,177)


Net Cash Flow NA (0) 3,137 1,085 1,434 739 1,096







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


Declining Proportion of City Increment NA NA 68% 66% 60% 51% 49%
City TIF Contribution NA 8,611 8,611 8,611 8,611 8,611 8,611


City Budget Effect:


Ad Valorem Revenue NA 22,146 26,117 29,590 32,646 35,946 39,511
Total Other Revenue (excl Ad Valorem) NA 43,688 56,705 48,554 49,898 51,283 52,710
Total Expenses NA (65,835) (80,728) (77,829) (81,078) (85,064) (89,177)


Net Cash Flow NA (0) 2,094 315 1,466 2,165 3,044


Selection left intentionally blank







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


Scenario 5: Resetting the Base Year (for CRA property value)


Increment Build Up:


East Side Property Value 388,517 407,943 428,340 449,757 472,245
West Side Property Value 1,969,536 2,068,013 2,171,413 2,379,084 2,713,838
Less: East Side Base City 377,201 (377,201) (377,201) (377,201) (377,201) (377,201)
Less: West Side Base City 1,912,171 (1,912,171) (1,912,171) (1,912,171) (1,912,171) (1,912,171)
Add: East Side New Construction - - - - -
Add: West Side New Construction - - 99,100 215,800 -
Add: East Side Resets 7,266 5,450 4,087 3,066 2,299
Add: West Side Resets 218,824 164,118 123,088 92,316 69,237


Total City Increment NA NA 294,771 356,151 536,657 850,651 968,248


East Side Increment 18,582 36,192 55,226 75,622 97,343
West Side Increment 276,189 319,960 481,431 775,029 870,905


Allocation to CRA from City 95% NA 9,736 2,072 2,504 3,773 5,980 6,807
Intergovernmental Transfer to City - NA (1,125) - - - - -


City TIF Contribution NA 8,611 2,072 2,504 3,773 5,980 6,807


City Budget Effect:


Ad Valorem Revenue NA 22,146 32,656 35,697 37,484 38,578 41,316
Total Other Revenue (excl Ad Valorem) NA 43,688 56,705 48,554 49,898 51,283 52,710
Total Expenses NA (65,835) (80,728) (77,829) (81,078) (85,064) (89,177)


Net Cash Flow NA (0) 8,633 6,423 6,305 4,796 4,849
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From: Cameau, Rasha
To: Kevin Crowder
Subject: P3 White Paper Feedback
Date: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 12:06:00 PM
Attachments: P3WhitePaper.pdf
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Rasha Cameau, MBA, FRA-RP
City Manager
776 NE 125 Street
North Miami, FL  33161
Office: 305-895-9888
 
To report any issues or have a question, please email engagenomi@northmiamifl.gov
 
 
 

From: Cameau, Rasha <rcameau@northmiamifl.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, June 7, 2023 9:57:00 AM
To: Lorfils, John <jlorfils@northmiamifl.gov>; larry@larrymspring.com <larry@larrymspring.com>;
Cazeau, Jeff P.H. <jcazeau@northmiamifl.gov>
Subject: P3 White Paper Feedback
 
Morning:  Please read my scribbles on the white paper.  I am concerned that this analysis does not
accurately reflect the City’s situation.
 

1. The numbers used to promote tax growth are GROSS, not net of CRA TIF, which is what I have
been concerned with.  I hand wrote the actual tax revenues on the form.

2. Statement of positive surplus fund balance, is as a result of waiving the $5 mil reserves for the

5th year in a row.  So I don’t know how that can be considered healthy.
3. “FY2022 $8.5 mil growth result of fee based revenues, property tax increases and diligent

expense management”  Also inaccurate, since taxes were lowered, and $$ is due to ARPA.
4. Charging rent for governmental entities, and CRA, water & sewer and Transportation.  Those

3 departments were not included in the architect’s space analysis.
5. Lastly, the sentence about operations and maintenance costs to be passed to the City, not

reflected in this memo.  Is very troublesome to me.
 
Can we have a proper do over? Because in all honesty Phase A is not based on strong facts. 
 
Thanks
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
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• 95% of the increment of the shaded areas (70% of City’s taxable) goes to the NMCRA since 2005
• City's only recurring increment revenue comes from unshaded areas (30% of City’s taxable)
• 45% of the increment of Sole Mia refunded to the City as of 2016 

Oleta State 
Park



TIF Payments 

Net County Contribution to the NMCRA FY05 to FY24   $ 10,567,254

Refund Amount to the County FY05 to FY24 $37,177,509

Total County TIF Generated In NMCRA $47,744,763

Net City Contribution to the NMCRA FY05 to FY24 $69,736,430

Refund Amount to the City FY2016 to FY24 (45% East) $  6,381,558

Total City TIF Generated in NMCRA $80,303,684

2



TIF Payments 
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Revenue Sample

4

 Lexus of North Miami generates $452,688. NMCRA gets $430,054, City gets $22,634

 Warren Henry generates $462,839.  NMCRA gets $244,148. City gets $218,691

 1535 NE 123 St (lot) generates $1,703. NMCRA gets $1618. City gets $85



Recurring General Fund Expenses

5

 $5 Million Reserves Annually

 Increase of Staff: Police, Neighborhood Services, etc. As Needed For  Population 
Growth

 Park Facilities Upgrades (if no grants are available)

 Availability Payment of $6.5 Mil for New City Hall/PD Development
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